Omnibus Multidiscipline Engineering Services (OMES)

“Issuance of responses to questions/comments received on Draft Request for Proposal-NNG11281303R”


	Questions or Comments
	Responses

	1. B.1 SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
Should Item 6 Reference read G.11 vice G.12?                                Should Item 7 Reference read I.53 vice I.57?                                        Should Item 9 Reference read I.35 vice I.38?                                     Should Item 10 Reference read I.56 vice I.61 and I.108 vice I.112?                                                           Should Item 11 Reference read I.90 vice I.93?                                       Should Item 12 Reference read I.101 vice I.105?                             Should Item 13 Reference read H.13 vice H.14?                              Should Item 16 Reference read H.11 vice H.12 and I.95 vice I.97?
	1.  Yes, the Final Request for Proposal (RFP) will incorporate the changes to the items referenced.  

	2. B.1 SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED (Item 8)
RFP Clause H.5 (d) Contractor Personnel—Identification, Onsite                                                                                                       Reporting, And Checkout Procedures, page 25, states “The Contractor shall annotate this provided report monthly to correct and update the information as follows: (1) Draw a line through the names of employees who are no longer employed by the contractor or that no longer work onsite under the contract, and; (2) Make handwritten changes to any other incorrect data.”  Please specify the delivery method for the monthly report.
	2.  The Contractor shall submit an annotated PIV Report electronically each month as specified in B.1, SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED, Item 8.


	3.  B.1 SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED (Item 4)
Annual Safety Report.  RFP Clause H7 Safety and Health (d), page 27 requires the following: “In addition, service contractors (excluding construction contracts) shall provide quarterly reports specifying lost-time frequency rate, number of lost-time injuries, exposure, and accident/incident dollar losses as specified in the contract Schedule.”  Please correct the inconsistency on safety requirements.
	3.     The final RFP will be corrected to fix this inconsistency.

	4. B.1 SUPPLIES AND/OR SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED (Item 11)
FAR 52.244-2(e)(1): the Government before a subcontract can be awarded to a subcontractor, verbiage in the draft RFP instructs the OMES Contractor to notify the Government 30 days prior to subcontract award date.  Please confirm the OMES Contractor not only has to notify the Government of its intent to issue a subcontract to a subcontractor, but it also needs to obtain consent or approval prior to issuing the subcontract. Please confirm that the provisions of FAR 52.244-2 apply to all subcontracts including Government directed subcontracts?
	4.    FAR Clause 52.244-2 is applicable if the Contractor does not have an approved purchasing system, consent to subcontract is required for any subcontract that (1) is a cost-reimbursement, time-and-materials, or labor-hour type; or (2) if it is a fixed-price type that exceeds the simplified acquisition threshold or is 5% of the total estimated cost of the entire contract.  “   If the Contractor has an approved purchasing system, the Contractor nevertheless shall obtain the Contracting Officer’s written consent before placing the following subcontracts: Professional and consultant costs as defined in FAR 31.205-33



	5. B.2  1852.216-74 ESTIMATED COST AND FIXED FEE (DEC 1991) 

“The estimated cost of this contract is [TO BE NEGOTIATED BY TASK ORDER] exclusive of the fixed fee of [TO BE NEGOTIATED BY TASK ORDER]. The total estimated cost and fixed fee is [TO BE NEGOTIATED BY TASK ORDER].”  Does this imply that a separate fee is to be negotiated per task order instead of having a fixed fee for the entire contract?
	5.    In accordance with the Attachment B – Rate and Fee Matrices, Section 3, the fixed fee rate for each contract year shall be used to calculate the fixed fee for all task orders issued under the contract.

	6. B.6 MINIMUM/MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF SUPPLIES OR SERVICES

Should the phrase be “In no event will the adjusted maximum amount exceed 130% of the original maximum amount”, or “In no event will the upward adjustment exceed 30% of the original maximum amount”?
	6.  Clause B.6(e) is written correctly, (i.e. “...exceeds 30% of the original maximum amount.”


	7. SECTION C- DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/STATEMENT OF WORK

We suggest the Government consider incorporating the following RFP verbiage in Section C and renumber the subsequent sections according: “3.1   SCOPE OF WORK -The Contractor shall provide all resources (except as may be expressly stated in the contract as furnished by the Government) necessary to furnish the deliverable items specified in Section B of this contract and perform the requirements set forth in the OMES Statement of Work, Attachment A.”                                                                                                                                                         
	7.  The Final RFP will incorporate the following: “C.1 Scope of Work:  The Contractor shall provide all resources (except as may be expressly stated in the contract as furnished by the Government) necessary to perform the work and to furnish the items specified in Section B, in accordance with the requirements set forth in the Statement of Work for Omnibus Multidiscipline Engineering Services for the Applied Engineering and Technology Directorate (AETD) incorporated in Section J as Attachment A, and task orders issued hereunder.”

	8. C.1  REPORTS OF WORK

Identifies the COTR’s Mail Code as 568; the Surveillance Plan, page 1 identifies the COTRs Mail Code as 563.  Please specify the COTR’s Mail Code.
	8. The COTR (including COTR Mail Code) for OMES is “TBD”.  The Final RFP will reflect this updated status.  

 

	9. E.3 MATERIAL INSPECTION AND RECEIVING REPORT NOT REQUIRED

“Page 8 appears to state that there is no requirement for a DD Form 250, Material Inspection and Receiving report for all services rendered and reports/documentation delivered. However, on Paragraph E.6, page 9 seems to contradict E.3 stating that the above Form is required.”  Please clarify.
	 9.  A Material Inspection and Receiving Report (MIRR) (DD Form 250 series) is not required for Reports/Documentation (paper/electronic).   However, a MIRR is required for  each delivery received at Receiving and Inspection (Code 279), Goddard Space Flight Center.



	10. Section H.6, 1852.209-71 Limitation of Future Contracting. (DEC 1988), page 15 and H.16, Avoidance of Organizational Conflicts of Interest, page 36:

Please clarify the limitations imposed on the successful OMES Offeror for future contracting opportunities as an OCI Avoidance Plan, which is required under the resulting OMES Contract, avoids the potential for an OCI issue to occur. Is the limitation a blanket limitation on all future contracting opportunities with NASA?
	10. A restriction will not be a “blanket limitation”.  Any restriction in accordance with H.6(c) (1) is based upon a reasonable time to avoid unfair competitive advantage or potential bias.

	11. Section H.16, Avoidance of Organizational Conflicts of Interest

Would providing “ground networks systems” services (both hardware and other support services covering a wide variety of NASA spacecraft)) through existing contracts with NASA/GSFC or another NASA contractor (such as JPL) preclude a company from successfully bidding OMES due to OCI issues?
	11. NASA understands that OCI considerations on OMES are a serious matter.  No offeror, or class of offerors, has been categorically excluded from proposing; however an acceptable OCI Plan (including acceptable mitigation strategy) has been made an eligibility requirement for further review of an Offeror's substantive proposal and award of the contract.  Providing “ground network systems” could prevent an Offeror with a potential conflict of impaired objectivity.  

	12. SECTION L.1 GENERAL: SUBFACTOR B, MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The offeror shall provide a staffing plan that shall describe how the offeror intends to staff this effort and how the approach will allow the offeror to meet the requirements of this contract.  Please confirm whether this "staffing plan" is a required stand-alone plan to be provided in addition to Management Approach narrative or a staffing approach to be included in the Management Approach narrative.
	12. For the Final RFP, Provision L.16 will be revised by removing the staffing plan from Subfactor B-Management Approach and added to Subfactor A-Representative Task Order.  The offeror shall provide a staffing plan within each task plan and describe how the offeror intends to staff the Representative Task Order and how the approach will allow the offeror to meet the requirements of the Representative Task Order.    



	13. L.8 1852.231-71 DETERMINATION OF COMPENSATION

Please confirm that any subcontractor that is to perform more than 10% of the OMES Total Contract Value (TCV) ($40M) will be required to submit a Total Compensation Plan (TCP).  And if so, will the Government allow that material to be submitted in a sealed package from each subcontractor that meets the requirement? 

	13.    Yes, if  the subcontractor meets the following requirements:  Any cost-reimbursement or non-competitive fixed-price type service contract having a potential value in excess of $500,000 or with a total contract value in excess of $40M (10%).  

	14. L.11 1852.245-81 LIST OF AVAILABLE GOVERNMENT PROPERTY

L.11 indicates that there is currently no GFE that is expected to be transferred to this contract upon award as all GFE is shown as "N/A".  Is that an accurate interpretation?
	14.  Yes, currently no GFE is available or expected to be transferred to this contract upon award.  

	15. Section L.13

The paragraph states “…The Contracting Officer has determined that this acquisition may give rise to an organizational conflict of interest (OCI).”   Paragraph L.13 also states that the nature of these organizational conflicts of interest include “Impaired objectivity” and “Biased Ground Rules.”

Based on the NASA OCI Guide, are we correct in concluding that there are no acceptable “mitigation” strategies for OCIs of the “impaired objectivity” and “biased ground rules” types and these types of OCIs must be resolved through “avoidance” (selecting a contractor that is free of potential OCIs) , “neutralization” (i.e. limitation on future competitions or future contraction), or waived (if all else fails) by agency head or a designee, recognizing that a waiver does not resolve the conflict?
	15. NASA disagrees with this conclusion.  The OCI guide recognizes that  there are techniques that can be used for mitigating conflicts and they should be described in detail in the OCI plan.

	16. Section L.14 Proposal Preparation—General Instructions (AUG 2009)

Please confirm Cover Letter, Compliance Matrices, Executive Summary, Table of Contents, List of Figures, List of Tables, List of Appendices, and List of Acronyms is excluded from page count.
	16.  Paragraph b (1) under L.14 Proposal Preparation identifies all the items to be excluded from the page limitations for each portion of the proposal.    

	17.   L .14 PROPOSAL PREPARATION – GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS AND L.17 COST VOLUME

There is a possible inconsistency in the definition of significant subcontractor between L.14 and L.17.  What is the definition of a significant subcontractor (for the cost proposal)?
	17. The definition of a significant subcontractor (cost proposal) is any subcontract that is likely to exceed 25% of a proposed Representative Task Order (RTO) estimate.  The Final RFP will incorporate the change (15% to 25%) in Section L.14.  

	18.  L.14 PROPOSAL PREPARATION —GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, page 85:

Since there are no instructions in Section L and no evaluation criteria in Section M of the draft RFP for addressing how the Offeror will perform work for the entire scope of the SOW, please confirm Offerors are only to provide the specific technical approach(es) to performing the elements of the SOW that are applicable to meeting the requirements in the Representative Task Order (RTO) once the RTO is made available to all Offerors. 
	18. Offerors shall provide written task plans (including technical approaches) addressing the representative tasks included as Exhibit A.  



	19. L.14 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions

The instruction L.14 (a) (5) requires the submission of a “matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied”.  Given that the instructions for Mission Suitability have no direct response to the SOW, should the Offeror disregard this statement?  If not, then what does the government want to see in the matrix?
	19.  Yes, the following statement will be excluded from the RFP: “The proposal shall include a matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied (i.e. SOW element versus offeror's proposal page numbers).  It is intended that this be a simple matrix that should in no way inhibit an innovative approach or burden the offeror.  This proposal matrix is excluded from the page limitations contained in paragraph (b) (1) below.”

	20. L.14 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions

Instruction L.14 (b) (2) proscribes the use of a font smaller than 12 point Times New Roman.  Does this use of “size” denote the height (i.e. point) or does it include character width and the standard kerning (not condensed).  That is to say may a font such as 12 pt Garamond be used?  Would the Government please clarify whether the font style for diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs can be in Arial? Would the Government consider extending the font size to no smaller than 8 point?
	  20. The accepted font and size is the following: No smaller than 12 point type Times New Roman font.  Text in Diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point also Times New Roman.  Diagrams, tables, artwork, and photographs shall not be used to circumvent the text size limitations of the proposal.

	21. L.14 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions, (a) (4)

Searchable PDF format will comply with all font standards as imposed by the RFP instructions.  In the interest of delivering a well formed, page-made document, will the government allow delivery in a searchable PDF format as an alternate to Microsoft Word?
	21.  The offeror can use a searchable PDF format as an alternate to Microsoft Word.  The Final RFP will incorporate the use of a searchable PDF format.  

	22. L.14(b)(1) table, Page 88

The “*” is explained below the table as “Prime and each significant subcontractor.”  Does the page limitation apply to the total of the prime and significant subcontractors or that the page limitations apply to the prime and each significant subcontractor separately?
	22. The page limitations apply to the prime and each significant subcontractor separately.

	23. L.15 Offer Volume,(c) Additional Information (5)  Government Property, page 91

Specifically “Government Property Management Information”, however, when you look up this reference in the NASA FAR Supplement, the title comes up as “Use of Government Production and Research Property on a No-Charge Basis”.  In another search we found the same clause listed under NASA FAR Supplement Clause Guidance and in the RFP titled as “Government Property Management Information”.  Furthermore, 1852.245-81, “List of Available Government Property” is only listed in the Guidance area not in the NASA FAR Supplement. We request that the NASA provide both references in full text so we can understand the requirement of both clauses.
	23. Government Property Management Information (1852.245-80) is  in full text in L.10 and List of Available Government Property (1852.245-81) is  in full text in L.11 of the Draft RFP.  



	24. Paragraph L.16.3, Subfactor B – Management Approach, Page 94

The DRFP states “The offeror shall identify significant subcontractors interfaces to your organizational structure…”  Which definition of significant subcontractor applies to Subfactor B, the Past Performance definition or Cost Volume definition?
	24.   The RFP, L.16.3, Subfactor B will be revised to state significant subcontractor as defined in L.17 Cost Volume.

	25. L.17.1, Page 100, 6th paragraph

The RFP states that “For significant subcontractors expected to exceed 25% of a proposed Representative Task Order (RTO) estimate, the proposed subcontractor shall provide the same cost exhibits and supporting information that is requested from the prime Offeror.”  However, cost exhibits B-1, B-10, and B-13 do not seem to be applicable to other than the Prime offeror.  Is it the Government’s intention that these exhibits should only be included in the Prime offeror’s cost volume?
	25.  Significant subcontracts shall provide sufficient detail to support and explain all costs proposed.  

	26. L.17.2(1), Page 101

The RFP states that only the Prime and significant subcontractors will be included in Attachment B.  For subcontractors that do not reach the significant subcontractor threshold, is it correct to assume that the Government does not want Attachment B fully-loaded rates established and submitted either with the Prime’s offer or in a sealed package delivered concurrent with the Prime’s proposal?
	26.  The Final RFP will be revised to include the following: “In Section 4, the Offeror shall include a fully-loaded direct labor rate matrix for each significant subcontractor and each projected subcontractor expected to exceed $60M. 

	27. Section L.17 Cost Volume (DEC 2010), 1.  Instructions, page 101

The section indicates that the offeror should provide ".....the actual escalation experienced in the last three years." Please clarify if the required information is to be provided on a company basis, contract basis or Labor Category basis?  
	27.   Offerors shall provide escalation information on a company basis.


	28. L.17 Cost Volume (DEC 2010), 2. Cost Proposal Format, Basis of Estimates (BOE), Page 104

The paragraph at the top of the page states "The BOE for the significant contract …..”  This seems to be an error.  Should it read "The BOE for the significant subcontractor(s)……."? Please clarify.
	28.  Yes, the Final RFP will incorporate the following “The BOE for the significant subcontractor….”


	29.   Section L.17 
Numerous SOW sections require hardware fabrication and assembly capabilities. Given this requirement and the increased costs associated with these facilities, why does the Draft RFP not specify a third labor rate to cover these costs and provide the Government with a more accurate cost input?


	29. Offerors shall include all costs associated with performing the Representative Task Orders. 

	30. L.17 Cost Volume

Section L.17, 1. Attachment B instructions requires that the Offeror include in Section 4 a fully loaded direct labor rate matrix for “each significant subcontractor”.  Because teammates are guaranteed a certain amount of work, isn’t it appropriate for Attachment B to include all teammate labor rates?
	30.   The Final RFP will be revised to include the following: “In Section 4, the Offeror shall include a fully-loaded direct labor rate matrix for each significant subcontractor and each projected subcontractor expected to exceed $60M. “

	31.  L.17 Cost Volume

Instruction L.17 does not contain an exhibit that requires the Offeror to disclose the costs of the management tools that are described in the Management Plan (per instruction L.16 Subfactor B).  If these tools are proposed in Subfactor B, should there not be a cost exhibit that details how and where their costs are included in the Offeror’s cost proposal (direct or indirect)?
	31. As noted in row 45 in Exhibit B-6, offerors can specify the type/name of Recurring ODC (i.e. Computer Usage, Program Management, Administrative Support, Depreciation, etc.).

	32.  L.17 Cost Volume, Exhibit 5, Contractor Fiscal Year to Contract Year Rate Conversion Exhibit

The Exhibit B-5, Summary of Indirect Rates requires three rate pools: Overhead Onsite Rate, Overhead Offsite Rate, and G&A Expense Rate.  Offerors are provided an opportunity to identify other indirect rates in accordance with their approved accounting system.  Furthermore, Instruction L.16.3, Subfactor B, 5th paragraph, requires identification of “corporate resources including manufacturing and other facilities, equipment, …”  Given the importance associated with manufacturing and other facilities under Mission Suitability, should Exhibit B-5 include a “Manufacturing Offsite Rate” as a required column?  Please clarify.
	32. Offerors can specify “Other” indirect rates within Exhibit B-5.  As noted in row 46, the Offeror can include multiple “Other" Indirect Rates by adding additional columns and specifying each individually.

	33. L.18 Past Performance Volume (SEP 2010) a) Information From The Offeror

Offerors (prime and significant subcontractors) are required to provide “customer’s name, address and telephone number of both the lead contractual and technical personnel most familiar with the Offeror's performance record.” In some instances, the offeror or a significant subcontractor acted as a subcontractor on a cited contract.  In the cases where the prime contractor on the cited contract is also bidding on this RFP, we request that the offeror be allowed to provide the Government points of contact in order to insure an impartial evaluation of the Offeror's performance.
	33.  If possible, the Offeror and any proposed significant subcontractor(s) shall provide questionnaires to customers from NASA contracts and/or, other Government contracts.

	34.  L.18 Past Performance Volume

Instruction L.18 includes specific size requirements for all past performance reference contracts.  Can a bidder include a reference contract for a teammate who does not meet the definition of a significant subcontractor per the requirements of L.18 (i.e., meet or exceed an average annual cost/fee of $12M (or ~ 15% of an annual contract cost/fee of $80M))?
	34. No, L.18 specifies the requirements for referencing contracts most relevant to OMES for the prime and significant subcontractor(s) only.  

	35.  Section L.18(a), p. 108

Offerors (prime and significant subcontractors) are required to provide “recent customer evaluations of past performance including Award Fee Evaluation results, Fee Determination Official letters, Annual Performance Evaluation forms, etc.” Information in these documents may be considered sensitive; Can the significant subcontractors provide the Government these documents directly?
	35.  The offeror and any proposed significant subcontractor(s) shall provide the questionnaires provided as Exhibit C to each of the above references to establish a record of past performance.  The Offeror shall instruct each of its references to return the questionnaire directly to the Government in a sealed envelope.

	36.  L.18(b), page 109, 3rd paragraph

The paragraph states “Offerors shall include in their proposal the written consent of their proposed significant subcontractors to allow the Government to discuss the subcontractors’ past performance evaluation with the Offeror.” Like other recent GSFC RFPs, will the written consent letters be outside of the 25-page allocation for the past performance volume?
	36. The written consent letters will be outside of the 25-page limitation for the past performance volume.

	37.  Attachment B, Direct Labor Rates, Section 4

Please define Loaded Labor Rates
	37. Fully-loaded rates of significant subcontractors are rates that include indirect costs and fee.  

	38.  Attachment B, Direct Labor Rates

The RFP does not indicate how the data is to be provided.  Can the offeror submit Attachment B in MS Excel 97 file format?
	38. Offerors shall complete Attachment B, Direct Labor Rates, Indirect Rates, and Maximum Available Fixed Fee Matrices, in Microsoft Word or searchable PDF format.  

	39.  Attachment B, Direct Labor Rates, Indirect Rates and Fixed Fee Matrices and L.17 Cost Volume (DEC 2010), 2. Cost Proposal Format, (1) Direct Labor and Indirect Rates Matrix:

In both, Attachment B, Section 4, and Section L of the draft RFP, it states we are to include the fully loaded rates of our significant subcontractors.  Please define fully loaded.  Is it through fixed fee or through all indirect rates?
	39. Fully-loaded rates of significant subcontractors are rates that include indirect costs and fee.  

	40. Exhibit B-2, Representative Task Plan Summary 

This Exhibit provides the offeror with rows to enter Overhead costs, however, if the offeror separates Overhead and Fringe Benefits in different pools.  Can the offeror add rows to show them separately on Exhibit B-2?
	40. As noted in Row 49 of Exhibit B-2, the offeror may adjust elements of cost to be consistent with the Offeror’s current accounting system.

	41.  Exhibit B-2, Representative Task Plan Summary and B-3, Prime & Significant Subcontractor Direct Labor Hours and Prime Direct Labor Costs.  

If the RTO is for a multiple year effort, should the offeror add columns up to the number of months in the RTO (e.g., 24 columns for a 24 month project) or should the offer create a duplicate tab for the additionl months (e.g., 2 tabs for a project between 13 and 24 months, 3 tabs for a project of 25 to 36 months, etc.?
	41. As noted in Row 48 of Exhibit B-2, the offeror may adjust the number of month columns to match RTO period of performance.

	42.  Exhibit B-4, RTO Source of Personnel Chart.

Since the RTO is being described as representative of the type of work to be performed under the OMES Contract and not a real task order, there will be no personnel to be obtained from incumbent for a representative task order since there is no incumbent. A source of staff chart clearly makes sense in the transition of incumbent personnel on a mission contract or related to Task Orders that will be priced during the proposal process and subsequently awarded as proposed for execution at the start of the contract. We strongly recommend that the Government consider the removal of the Source of Personnel Chart.  
	42.  The RTO Source of Personnel Chart will remain in the Request for Proposal.  However, Exhibit B-4 will be revised to delete the “Personnel to be Obtained from Incumbent” column.  This chart will provide insight on how the offeror plans to obtain the required personnel for the Representative Task Orders.

	43.    General

Would the Rapid Spacecraft Development Office Rapid III catalog vendors be excluded as a prime contractor or as a first tier subcontractor due to OCI concerns?
	43.   Reference Notice of Organization Conflict of Interest Clause L.13.   NASA understands that OCI considerations on OMES are a serious matter.  No offeror, or class of offerors, has been categorically excluded from proposing; however an acceptable OCI Plan (including acceptable mitigation strategy) has been made an eligibility requirement for further review of the Offeror's substantive proposal and award of the contract.  

	44. General 
Would the launch vehicle vendors for launch vehicles that would launch GSFC missions be excluded as a prime contractor or as a first tier subcontractor due to OCI concerns?
	44.  See response #43 above.

	45. General 

Would GSFC mission spacecraft instrument vendors be excluded as a prime contractor or as a first tier subcontractor due to OCI concerns?
	45. See response #43 above.

	46. General 

An OCI mitigation plan that puts strong firewalls between the prime contractor and a subcontractor makes the management of that subcontractor and the fulfillment of the above-listed responsibilities very difficult if not impossible.  Management of a subcontractor, by necessity, requires knowledge of and the ability to inspect the work that the subcontractor is performing.  OCI plans that contain firewalls of this nature prevents the prime contractor from being able to exercise the appropriate oversight necessary to protect the government’s interests.

Based on the above arguments, and considering that Page 21, Paragraph 2 of the NASA Guide on OCI notes that the GAO discourages using subcontractors as mitigation, the conclusion is drawn that a mitigation strategy based on subcontracting segments of the work to avoid an OCI issue is not an approved strategy.  Does the Government concur with this conclusion?

	46. NASA disagrees with the conclusion that use of firewalled subcontractor(s) to mitigate impaired objectivity or biased ground rules OCIs for the OMES procurement, will, in every instance, is an unacceptable strategy.   As noted, it may be an unacceptable approach if an unacceptably large portion of the SOW has been given to firewalled subcontractors.   
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